          1

          2  CITY COUNCIL

          3

             CITY OF NEW YORK

          4

             -------------------------------x

          5

             THE TRANSCRIPT OF THE MINUTES

          6

                       of the

          7

             COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          8

             -------------------------------x

          9

         10                 April 21, 1999

                            Start:  1:10 p.m.

         11                 Recess: 2:54 p.m.

         12                 City Hall

                            Committee Room

         13                 New York, New York

         14

                  B E F O R E:

         15

                         NOACH DEAR

         16                                Chairperson,

         17

                         COUNCIL MEMBERS:   June Eisland

         18                                 Walter McCaffrey

                                            Kathryn Freed

         19                                 A. Gifford Miller

                                            Margarita Lopez

         20                                 Angel Rodriguez

                                            Michael Nelson

         21                                 Alphonse Stabile

                                            Helen Marshall

         22                                 John Sabini

         23

         24       LEGAL-EASE COURT REPORTING SERVICES, INC.

                         217 Broadway -  Suite 511

         25              New York, New York 10007

                              (800) 756-3410

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            2

          1

          2  A P P E A R A N C E S

          3

             Claire Shulman

          4  Queens Borough President

          5  Chuck Meara

             Manager of State and Local Relations

          6  Port Authority of New York and New Jersey

          7  Ralph Trigalli

             Manager of Government Relations

          8  Port Authority of New York and New Jersey

          9  Seymour Schwartz

             Queens Civic Congress

         10

             Arnold Gilbert

         11  Vice President

             Kew Gardens Hills Homeowners Civic Association

         12

             Mary Sarro

         13  United Community Civic Association

         14  Joy Held

             President

         15  Helicopter Noise Coalition of New York City

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            3

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Good afternoon, and

          3  welcome to today's hearing of the Committee on

          4  Transportation.  Today the Committee will be

          5  conducting a hearing on Resolution No. 654, which

          6  calls upon the President of the United States, the

          7  U.S. Secretary of Transportation, and Congress, not

          8  to authorize an increase in the number of flights at

          9  New York City Airports until the potential adverse

         10  impacts of those flights on noise levels have been

         11  analyzed and solutions devised.  Earlier this year,

         12  in a press release issued by the Secretary of

         13  Transportation, Rodney Slater, the Clinton

         14  Administration indicated that support for

         15  legislation which would eliminate the High Density

         16  Rule.

         17                 The High Density Rule was promulgated

         18  by the FAA in 1968 and went into effect in 1969 to

         19  limit the number of incoming and outgoing flights at

         20  five airports.  They include JFK International,

         21  LaGuardia, Chicago's O'Hare, Newark International

         22  Airport, and Ronald Reagan Washington Airport.

         23  Newark has since received an exemption from the High

         24  Density Rule.  The HDR, as it is commonly referred

         25  to was established to alleviate congestion and
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          2  reduce delays, but also had the effect of improving

          3  safety at these airports.  Although, noise reduction

          4  was not one of the stated objectives, area residents

          5  know only too well what the consequence will be if

          6  the High Density Rule is eliminated at two of the

          7  nation's busiest airports, JFK and LaGuardia.  The

          8  noise levels resulting from a substantial increase

          9  in air traffic will impact adversely on these

         10  communities.

         11                 The League for the Hard of Hearing

         12  and their airport noise fact sheet states that

         13  aircraft noise may have significant mental and

         14  physical health impacts on people who live below the

         15  flight paths of commercial and private airplanes,

         16  which includes stress, hypertension, sleep

         17  disturbances, and difficulty with work or academic

         18  performance.  Advocates for the Elimination of the

         19  High Density Rule, which would be phased in over

         20  five years in the Administrations's proposal, but

         21  could occur as early as March 1st, 2000, under

         22  legislation pending in Congress, also known as AIR-

         23  21, site economic development and market competition

         24  in support of eliminating the High Density Rule.

         25  AIR- 21 has already received Committee approval and
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          2  expected to be presented on the floor of the House

          3  next month.  In the Senate version, S. 82, was also

          4  approved by Committee, which would grant the

          5  Secretary of Transportation additional authority to

          6  waive HDR with respect to regional jet service in

          7  certain communities.  The time is to act now.

          8                 The Transportation Committee has

          9  convened this hearing to hear from experts and

         10  residents about the anticipated impact of

         11  eliminating HDR and explore the alternatives.  The

         12  Committee invited the FAA to attend, and I don't

         13  have to say any further and testify at this hearing,

         14  but, of course, let go is, they declined, and what

         15  is interesting is their response to us is that they

         16  do not attend local governmental hearings.  So,

         17  basically, to me it tells the local community, drop

         18  dead, we do not care about you.  So, Ms. Feldman,

         19  who is the FAA Administrator for this area, let me

         20  tell you Ms. Feldman, this is not going to wash, and

         21  I promise you, and I know I'm not talking to her,

         22  but I'm sure some of her representatives are here, I

         23  promise you this much, we will fight this to the

         24  very end, you are a heartless group of people who

         25  does not care about the people, all you care is the
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          2  bottom line and about money.  We will put a stop to

          3  this, whatever it takes.

          4                 I know we're joined today by the

          5  Borough President of Queens, Borough President

          6  Shulman has been a strong advocate and a strong

          7  supporter of the communities who have been fighting

          8  this for so many, many years.  And I know that we

          9  have other elected officials that are supporting

         10  this and are out there, and are really outraged.  I

         11  went to a meeting the other day, at some time ago

         12  already, in Howard Beach, and this was a subsequent

         13  meeting that we have had in the community, and they

         14  were complaining, particularly that time there was

         15  an incident of a jet fuel spill because of an

         16  emergency landing, and how homes in that area were

         17  all covered with the film of oil and fuel, and no

         18  one knew what to do about it.

         19                 The only one that really responded at

         20  that time was the Fire Department and basically told

         21  them that even though they have no control of it,

         22  but that the community should go out there and carry

         23  on and really scream, and they have had meetings,

         24  one after another, but no one listens to them, the

         25  only person that really cared about this was the
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          2  local Council Member Al Stabile, who convened the

          3  meeting afterwards to try to get the community

          4  together, enough is enough, they have been dumped

          5  on, the Queens Community, the people have been hurt

          6  enough, and it is time now that we act.  And we're

          7  hoping that members of Congress will recognize that

          8  and hear that out, and put an end to it finally, to

          9  suffering that the Queens people, the people are

         10  suffering in Queens, not only near the LaGuardia

         11  Airport, JFK, the community of Howard Beach, the

         12  Rockaways, they have had enough and they deserve

         13  better.

         14                 So FAA, why don't you, for once,

         15  listen to the people and, please, do something to

         16  make sure that the communities around the airports

         17  don't become the sacrificial lamb, don't suffer

         18  because some people want to make more money.  We

         19  understand we are a busy airport, but that doesn't

         20  mean that we should get hurt and allow people to

         21  suffer as well.

         22                 But we do, however, expect and, you

         23  know, despite what some people like to say about the

         24  Port of Authority, they are a good agency.  We may

         25  disagree on some issues, but I think I agree 99.9
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          2  percent of the issues.  In fact, I applaud the Port

          3  of Authority now for its stand and the Governor for

          4  its stand, taking against New Jersey, that finally

          5  the monies that we do generate stays in New York,

          6  and I know that is the Mayor's big beef with the

          7  Port of Authority, and everybody is fighting on the

          8  right side of that one, and so I hope we win that

          9  one, and I'm sure it will work itself out.  And,

         10  again, it took many years for the Port of Authority

         11  to take that position, well, you have a split in the

         12  Port of Authority, but, at least, the Executive

         13  Director is going the right way.  At least, he

         14  remembers that he is appointed by the New York side,

         15  so he is a New Yorker, he doesn't forget his roots.

         16                 We also hope to hear from the Air

         17  Transport Association, and representative other

         18  elected officials, and numerous civic and community

         19  groups who have been on this issue for a long time.

         20  But what we hope to do today is pass a resolution in

         21  the City Council, make a strong statement, and

         22  hopefully, continue to fight this issue until there

         23  is some reprieve for the people who live in Queens,

         24  and I must tell you it affects people in Brooklyn

         25  too, if it's the wrong, you know, if the wind is
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          2  blowing the wrong way, believe me, everybody is

          3  affected by it, if you live anywhere close and

          4  within the 25- mile radius of the airport you are

          5  absolutely affected by the noise and all the

          6  pollution from those planes.

          7                 Without further ado, we're fortunate

          8  to have with us today, the champion for this cause,

          9  for the people of Queens, the Borough President of

         10  Queens, Claire Shulman, go ahead.

         11                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT SHULMAN:  Thank

         12  you, Councilman Dear.  I want to thank you for

         13  inviting me here today.  Just a question, if I

         14  might, before I start my testimony, your Resolution

         15  654, does it include the phrase until the potential

         16  adverse impacts of these flights on noise levels

         17  have been analyzed and solutions devised, is that

         18  part of your resolution?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:   Right at the

         20  beginning, if you look at the title of the

         21  resolution, the title.

         22                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT SHULMAN:  Yes, not

         23  to authorize  -

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Resolution calling

         25  upon the United States, Secretary, et cetera, not to
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          2  authorize the increase of number of flights in New

          3  York City Airports until the potential adverse

          4  impacts of those flights of noise levels have been

          5  analyzed and solution devised.

          6                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT SHULMAN:  All right

          7  that is the language that I question and if, with

          8  respect, we might want to amend that language,

          9  because noise is not the only problem with waiving

         10  the High Density Rule.  So even if we got rid of all

         11  of the noise, the air traffic is another problem,

         12  and the other problems air traffic in the sky, and

         13  ground traffic and pollution are also problems, so,

         14  I don't know, you might want to change that a

         15  little.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Okay, I will ask

         17  if we can, okay, I will ask Counsel to look at that.

         18                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT SHULMAN:  Also I

         19  don't know what your experience with Arlene Feldman

         20  is, but she was in Queens about three weeks ago and

         21  held a public hearing on this issue of noise, so if

         22  she isn't coming here, she did come to us and stayed

         23  for an entire evening and listened to the

         24  communities' complaints about both Kennedy and

         25  LaGuardia.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  I can tell you

          3  this much, every hearing we invited her, she refused

          4  to attend.  I know her, I talked to her on the

          5  phone, but every meeting we invite, she refuses to

          6  attend, so, my - -

          7                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT SHULMAN: I'm sorry.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: - -  meeting

          9  someone who, you used to sit on the Board of

         10  Estimates, if you remember, if even a Federal or

         11  State official tried to defy and show disrespect to

         12  the Board of Estimate, you knew what you had to do.

         13  I think this is totally disrespectful to the Council

         14  that they don't even bother coming here, they feel

         15  that they're holier than thou, and they have that

         16  attitude.  It's nice that she came out here, but in

         17  the past the FAA has not been kind and supportive of

         18  the communities.

         19                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT SHULMAN:  The one

         20  that doesn't respond is Slater.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Well, he is, you

         22  know, he doesn't.

         23                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT SHULMAN:  I have a

         24  different experience than you have.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Okay, and I agree
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          2  with you.

          3                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT SHULMAN:  The

          4  Secretary of Transportation does not respond to

          5  mail, phone calls, or anything else, the FAA does.

          6  However, let me give you my testimony.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Sure, please.

          8                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT SHULMAN:  I mean,

          9  to me, that has been my experience.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  And I agree with

         11  you about the Secretary of Transportation, I guess

         12  they have, Washington is the only State of the

         13  Union, I guess.

         14                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT SHULMAN:  Or

         15  Arkansas, which is where he comes from.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Okay.

         17                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT SHULMAN:  Let me

         18  begin by acknowledging that the airports are an

         19  important part of the economy of both the Borough of

         20  Queens and the entire City.  The airports bring many

         21  benefits to Queens, including visitors, new

         22  residents, jobs, economic activity.  They are also

         23  essential to the City's leading role in various

         24  industries and help make it a true international

         25  City.  We have about 50,000 direct jobs at both our
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          2  airports and about 150,000 indirect jobs in

          3  industries that are ally to the aviation industry.

          4                 Yet, the airports also create

          5  problems which need to be addressed.  One of the

          6  major issues for Queens residents, of course, is

          7  noise.  LaGuardia and Kennedy Airports, each, handle

          8  approximately 350,000 airplane flights every year,

          9  which on the average means one takeoff or landing

         10  every minute, every minute from 6:00 a.m. Till

         11  midnight, every day.  And since each flight passing

         12  overhead can be heard for almost two minutes,

         13  residents living under the flight paths are burdened

         14  with virtually continuous airplane noise.

         15                 My office has been working on this

         16  problem for the past 12 years.  We have an Aviation

         17  Advisory Council, some of the folks are here today,

         18  consisting of elected officials, Community Board

         19  members, the FAA, the Port of Authority, Airline

         20  representatives and local Civic Associations, and

         21  they meet periodically to address the problems,

         22  including noise pollution associated with both the

         23  airport.  Although much more needs to be done, the

         24  Aviation Advisory Council has been able to achieve

         25  significant results in reducing aircraft noise in
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          2  some of our neighborhoods.

          3                 Working with our Queens Congressional

          4  Delegation, we successfully pushed for enactment of

          5  the Airport Noise and Capacity Act, which will

          6  require a phase- out of the noisy Stage II engines

          7  by the end of the year.  We regret, however, that

          8  some airlines plan to continue using the older Hush-

          9  Kitted Aircraft rather than the quieter models, and

         10  I call to your attention the Delta Shuttle. The

         11  Delta Shuttle will not take those Hush- Kits off, as

         12  of today, until the year 2006.  They have, however,

         13  bought many, many Stage III Aircraft, which they are

         14  sending all over the country, but not in the Shuttle

         15  at LaGuardia.

         16                 My office also works very closely

         17  with the FAA and the Port of Authority to ensure

         18  that air traffic controllers rotate the takeoff and

         19  landing runways and the various flight paths that

         20  are used.  This allows us to disperse the flights to

         21  different areas during the day, thereby, avoid

         22  overburdening any one community with a

         23  disproportionate share of the aircraft noise.

         24                 The final decisions on runways and

         25  flight paths are made by the FAA Air Traffic
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          2  Controllers, who ensure that the changes are made in

          3  a manner that is fully consistent with public

          4  safety.

          5                 We are also working with the FAA to

          6  see whether the flight paths themselves can be

          7  changed in a manner which reduces noise impacts.  As

          8  the FAA begins an ambitious project other redesign

          9  all of the flight paths in the New York Metropolitan

         10  Area, we will work to ensure that noise over

         11  residential areas is a major consideration.

         12                 Since more planes mean more noise, it

         13  is essential that we prevent any increase in the

         14  number of flights at our airports.  Both Kennedy and

         15  LaGuardia are subject to the High Density Rule,

         16  which limits the number of takeoffs and landings.

         17  Airlines are continuously asking for exemptions from

         18  that rule, which we have always opposed.  More

         19  recently, there have been efforts to scrap the rule

         20  entirely.  The hope is that eliminating the High

         21  Density Rule would increase airline competition and

         22  lower airfares, particularly between New York and

         23  the Upstate Cities.

         24                 This is legislation pending in

         25  Congress today to do away with the rule, and the
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          2  U.S. House of Representatives could vote on the bill

          3  as early as next month.  This makes the Resolution

          4  before the Council especially important and urgent.

          5                 We must also remember that one of the

          6  reasons why the High Density Rule was adopted in the

          7  first place, the rule was created in 1968 to ease

          8  congestion at five airports, including Kennedy and

          9  LaGuardia.  The situation at the New York Airports

         10  was especially acute, before the rule was adopted,

         11  it could sometimes take as long as four hours to fly

         12  between Washington, D.C. And New York.  In San

         13  Francisco and Miami, flights were held on the ground

         14  because there simply was no room for them in the New

         15  York air space, and other flights to New York were

         16  simply canceled for lack of room in the sky.  I

         17  mean, can you believe what they are trying to do in

         18  Washington?

         19                 Improvements in technology since that

         20  time have allowed for more flights, but a repeal of

         21  the High Density Rule would still result in delays

         22  according to the Federal Department of

         23  Transportation, without the rule overall delays

         24  would increase by 60 percent at LaGuardia and double

         25  at Kennedy.  The New York Airports are already among

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            17

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  those with the highest number of delays. Repeal of

          3  the High Density Rule would only make this worse.

          4                 New flights would also mean more

          5  noise for our communities, and there is a tremendous

          6  amount of aircraft noise in Queens County and

          7  throughout the City, so we must work to decrease the

          8  noise and disruption in people's lives.  If we allow

          9  additional flights, our neighborhoods would only be

         10  further disrupted.

         11                 The City Council's resolution, which

         12  calls upon Federal officials to address the adverse

         13  effects of additional flights is a good start, and I

         14  endorse its passage.  But we must remain vigilant as

         15  the Federal Government considers this issue, and

         16  ensure that the voices of those living around our

         17  airports are heard, that is, if they can be heard

         18  over the roar of the airplanes overhead.

         19                 Now let me just add, Councilman and

         20  Councilwoman who is the recipient of most of this

         21  noise, since her district is around the airport, my

         22  information is that, as well as yours, that this is

         23  going to be voted on probably within the next three

         24  weeks and that it could plug into New York City as

         25  early as March, and that it is probably going to be
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          2  part of a much larger bill, so it would be very

          3  difficult to take it out and veto it.  And secondly,

          4  the heard of the Transportation Committee is from

          5  Pennsylvania is pushing this very hard.

          6                 I don't know how successful we are

          7  going to be, there will have to be some sort of

          8  drastic action, I'm not quite sure what it is yet.

          9  But there is no way that they can lift the High

         10  Density Rule at LaGuardia or Kennedy.  There are

         11  ways to deal with the Rochester, Buffalo, and

         12  Syracuse problem.  There are ways to deal with that

         13  without wavering the High Density Rule, but that is

         14  being used as a lever to get rid of the High Density

         15  Rule, and it is not necessary.  There is a

         16  confrontation brewing really between representatives

         17  from Upstate New York and Downstate over this issue,

         18  and I believe it is possible to solve it without

         19  wavering the High Density Rule.

         20                 So I commend all of you for taking

         21  this matter up, because I think it will have very,

         22  very significant impact in the City of New York, and

         23  particularly in the Borough of Queens.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  With regard to the
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          2  solution that they have, that you think they have,

          3  can you elaborate on that, in sense between Upstate

          4  and Downstate?

          5                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT SHULMAN:  There are

          6  talks going on between Upstate Reps and Downstate

          7  regarding the High Density Rule as it relates to the

          8  cities Upstate where the cost of flying to those

          9  cities is quite high.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Right, right.

         11                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT SHULMAN:  I have to

         12  tell you that I flew to Washington with a staff

         13  member last week, it cost over $800.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Right.

         15                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT SHULMAN:  Which I

         16  think is ridiculous, I'm flying to Paris next month

         17  for $362.  So, you know, Delta has some nerve

         18  keeping those Hush- Kits on that profitable shuttle.

         19    But there are ways to deal with the Upstate, and I

         20  am meeting with my Congressional Delegation Monday

         21  morning to discuss that.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  And would you

         23  support a redistribution of existing slots to all

         24  the airlines?

         25                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT SHULMAN:  Yes, I
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          2  spoke with Congressman Nadler, either yesterday or

          3  the day before, regarding this because he is on the

          4  Transportation Committee, and he and I agreed that

          5  the reallocation of slots was a much better way to

          6  go than to waive the High Density Rule.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Yes.

          8                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT SHULMAN:  Of

          9  course, the major airlines are not going to like

         10  that because they have those slots, so they will

         11  probably fight it, but it is a much better way to

         12  go. And even if you issue a few slots for Kennedy so

         13  they can fly to the Upstate cities a little more,

         14  you know, a little less expensively, that still

         15  doesn't mean that you have to waive the High Density

         16  Rule.  There is a guy floating around the City from

         17  Salt Lake, and if you read the New York Times

         18  Business Section today, he is buying Airbus to fly

         19  to some of the Upstate cities at a cheaper rate from

         20  Kennedy.  He has applied to USDOT I think for about

         21  70 slots.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Yes.

         23                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT SHULMAN:  You know

         24  whether they waive it for him or not, I suppose they

         25  will since he is already buying the airplanes, he
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          2  must know something I don't know.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  But, I guess,

          4  they're doing it already, giving,- -  are these

          5  extra slots or slots that are available?

          6                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT SHULMAN:  This is

          7  additional slots.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  And on what basis

          9  can they give it out before this law is passed?

         10                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT SHULMAN:  Well,

         11  they have done it at LaGuardia.  I mean, how many

         12  did they issue?  The Secretary had the discretion,

         13  they have added slots to LaGuardia over our

         14  opposition in the last year.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  And did you go to

         16  court on that?

         17                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT SHULMAN:  Yes, we

         18  went to court, the Mayor and I went to court and we

         19  lost.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Right.  And so the

         21  truth is they don't even need this legislation to

         22  add slots then.

         23                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT SHULMAN:  Well,

         24  apparently not, but, you know, there is a big move

         25  in Congress to do it.  There are airlines that
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          2  emanate from the Southwestern part of our country

          3  who want a piece of the New York market.  And they

          4  don't really care about the people that live on the

          5  ground here and how we put up with the airports,

          6  they just want a piece of the market.

          7                 And I just want to say this, I mean,

          8  everybody knows about LaGuardia Airport and the

          9  pilots that fly into LaGuardia are very, very

         10  experienced with the runways at LaGuardia, which are

         11  short.  We added, how many feet, Helen, about 300

         12  feet is an over run, a safety over run on one of the

         13  runways, and so, you know, all the pilots that fly

         14  into LaGuardia are familiar and are especially

         15  careful about taking off and landing.  And I just

         16  wonder what happens if a lot of airlines, smaller

         17  airlines and their pilots are not too familiar, it's

         18  a worry for us.  And I suppose that everybody thinks

         19  that they are going to watch the safety angle of

         20  this, and, you know, I just have been there when

         21  airplanes have gone into the water.  So I'm really

         22  concerned about increasing the number of flights at

         23  LaGuardia.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  So, in a sense, so

         25  even if this bill does not pass, or whatever
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          2  happens, or this aspect of it --

          3                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT SHULMAN:  It still

          4  can add flights, but let me tell you, there were

          5  some, there were quite a few additional slots that

          6  were asked for, and we raised such a fuss and went

          7  to court that they stopped after the first group,

          8  and they didn't approve anymore.

          9                 So, maybe, you know, public - -

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Outcry?

         11                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT SHULMAN: - -

         12  outcry has been effective at LaGuardia.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  What is

         14  interesting is that the Local Regional

         15  Administrative FAA has to make that recommendation

         16  to Washington.

         17                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT SHULMAN:  What?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Regarding the

         19  extra slots, don't they take, they don't have no

         20  input at all?

         21                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT SHULMAN:  I don't

         22  think so, I have been told that it is Slater, that

         23  it is the Secretary of DOT.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Yes.

         25                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT SHULMAN:  And that
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          2  the FAA really, doesn't really have much to do about

          3  the number of slots.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Yes, and have you,

          5  I know you said you tried to meet with Slater, has

          6  any of his people met with you at all from DOT, the

          7  U.S. DOT?

          8                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT SHULMAN:  We have

          9  written to him, I have called him, the only time I

         10  have ever laid eyes on Slater was when we did the

         11  subway in Long Island City, remember, we dug that

         12  big hole in the ground, and he came for that.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  The hole is still

         14  there.

         15                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT SHULMAN:  And the

         16  tunnel connection to the E and F Train.  He came out

         17  for out, and then I saw him one more time, but I

         18  have never really had a chance to speak to him about

         19  the airports.  I have spoken to a couple of

         20  assistants on the telephone, but they have never

         21  given us the courtesy of a response either on the

         22  telephone or by mail, which I think is rather

         23  telling.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Absolutely,

         25  absolutely.  Okay, thank you very much, but before,
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          2  Council Member Marshall.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Thank you,

          4  Mr. Chairman. Thank you, Borough President Shulman

          5  for coming out as you always do a champion of the

          6  people, and especially when the cause is just.

          7                 I happen to represent, LaGuardia

          8  Airport is in my district, it was in my district for

          9  nine years in the Assembly, and it has been in my

         10  district from the time that I entered the City

         11  Council.  And my struggle with the airport and its

         12  expansion, et cetera, goes back maybe as much as 25

         13  years, but particularly the noise.  Yes, the

         14  Secretary can override and permit additional flights

         15  to come in, but that will happen along if you allow,

         16  if we change the rule, if we do away with the rule

         17  as it stands now, there will be an onslaught.  And

         18  right now if you come with me I can take you to a

         19  number of places in my community, in fact, I will

         20  just give you an example with my two grandsons who

         21  love airplanes.

         22                 We were standing in the shopping mall

         23  at 77th Street and we heard this roar that sounded

         24  like almost like an atomic bomb and they were

         25  frightened.  They looked up and saw that it was an
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          2  airplane and that was comforting, but it still and

          3  all we could practically wave to the people, wave to

          4  the people, the passengers in the plane, it was that

          5  close.  It appeared to be no more than a 100 or 50

          6  feet above the building, because these buildings are

          7  all low.  We're in a flight path, there for runway

          8  421.

          9                 People who live along Ditmars

         10  Boulevard where the planes takeoff of runway 31- 13,

         11  they are, it's as though they never stop.  It's as

         12  though they never cease, all you can do is hear

         13  planes going, landing and taking off all day long.

         14  Fortunately, they're supposed to cut off at twelve

         15  o'clock, midnight, but we also have the planes on

         16  the ground revving up, and sometimes when you step

         17  out of your back door, here comes the fumes.  The

         18  community has really had it with the tremendous

         19  amount of noise generated by the planes.

         20                 We have tried to work with the Port

         21  of Authority, although this is not really the Port

         22  of Authority doing this, this is the FAA.  But I

         23  mean, we have lost our water, we have lost a lot of

         24  our Bay, and that means that the airport is even

         25  closer to us, runway 31- 13 goes right behind, in
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          2  front of houses, where people have lived for many,

          3  many years.

          4                 The level of noise is bad now, it

          5  will be intolerable if we remove this protective law

          6  and increase the density and the amount of flights

          7  that can move in and out of there.  So that we are

          8  suffering enough now, and we do have people who are

          9  suffering also from the fumes of the airplanes.  Air

         10  quality in that area shows that it is very bad, it's

         11  along the same corridor with Big Alice down there in

         12  Long Island City.  So that we have got to really

         13  think of the public, there is a limit to how big an

         14  airport can be really in an urban area.  And this is

         15  an airport that is all on landfill, that was, the

         16  people were there before the airport was there,

         17  okay?  And especially the expanded airport, and to

         18  wake up and find this out, you know, in your

         19  backyard is really terrible, and the whole corridor,

         20  the whole corridor from Long Island City to Bayside,

         21  we have banned together, we have met in the Borough

         22  President's Office, we have done all kinds of things

         23  to try to keep the airport a good neighbor, and also

         24  to protect our people.

         25                 They have to, right now, even
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          2  insulate schools that are within a certain distance

          3  of the airport to try to protect the children in

          4  those public schools from the noise from the

          5  airplanes. You cannot do things in your house when

          6  these planes are landing and coming down hard, with

          7  all the noise that they bear.

          8                 And so that all of Queens is really

          9  100 percent with our Borough President.

         10                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT SHULMAN:  Let me

         11  say, Helen, just so they know, other folks that

         12  don't live around the airport understand how

         13  complicated this gets.  Several years ago, we

         14  changed the flight path somewhat, and the airplanes

         15  were supposed go over Great Neck, but at a height

         16  that they wouldn't hear above 1,500 feet.  Well,

         17  somebody in Connecticut didn't like the landing

         18  patterns that were coming into LaGuardia, so they

         19  lowered, they had to lower the takeoff over Great

         20  Neck to accommodate the people in Connecticut, and

         21  so the political power in Nassau County changed that

         22  flight path almost over night, because the New York

         23  Times reported the next morning that the people

         24  playing Bridge in Great Neck couldn't hear the bids.

         25    I mean, I'm not kidding, that was, I can find the
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          2  article for you.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  That is the

          4  truth.

          5                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT SHULMAN:  It was

          6  Josh, what was his name, Babernell, who worked for

          7  the New York Times at that time, but that is how

          8  political some of this stuff is, and I resent it,

          9  because it's almost like, and I hate to say this,

         10  it's almost like the rich folks have a lot more to

         11  say about where these planes are flying than us, the

         12  rest of us in the City of New York, and I think that

         13  is unfortunate.  And you can tell by what is

         14  happening at LaGuardia with all this business of

         15  lifting the High Density Rule.  You know, the people

         16  in the Southwest and other parts of the country have

         17  a lot more clout than we do in New York and there is

         18  something wrong with that.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  About going to

         20  Washington, D.C., there are time limits on what kind

         21  of planes can fly and at what time, and as a result

         22  the shuttle does not go pass 9:30 in D.C.  So it's

         23  obvious it depends where the clout is, and we would

         24  think that New York would have enough clout to fight

         25  this, and I think it is unfair, and part of the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            30

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  problem is it continues, it's the burden we always

          3  have to bear, particular when it comes to everything

          4  that comes into the City of New York.  We are the

          5  gateway to the world, but that doesn't mean that we

          6  have to suffer, we can, because we are the gateway

          7  we should get more resources and more help, and I

          8  think it is unfair of what they are doing to us.

          9                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT SHULMAN:  Well

         10  we're the engine that drives the rest of the country

         11  economically, and as soon as they wake up to that

         12  fact, the better off all of us will be.  So, you

         13  know, the thing that is disturbing is that our

         14  Congressional Delegation from the entire State of

         15  New York is having interesting dialogue, and if we

         16  can't get our delegation together, how are we ever

         17  going to beat this thing?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Absolutely.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  You know I

         20  would just like to finish by saying, I believe, and

         21  I hope I'm right, that the Port of Authority has, I

         22  think, built and done practically all that they have

         23  planned to do to expand the airport, including the

         24  safety overrun.

         25                 We do have a study now that is going
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          2  to help us with the water quality and so on.  This

          3  is a new thing that is being inflicted upon us by

          4  the FAA and the Airlines, and it really, after all

          5  that we have done and worked together to accomplish,

          6  to now impose this on us, it's terrible.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  And what is

          8  interesting, we went out, one of the times we went

          9  out to LaGuardia in particular, we heard from

         10  community people that this is not the question that

         11  the airport was there first, the community was there

         12  first.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  You got it,

         14  I was there when you were there.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  And they promised

         16  that this would be limited, no expansions, and they

         17  were lied to once, twice, three times, many times,

         18  and you know what, enough is enough, and if we all

         19  ban together, and I hope that we will fight together

         20  this issue, and absolutely loud and clear that we

         21  can't put one group against another, yes, it may

         22  help our economy, but we can't help our economy and

         23  hurt our people's health, and I'm determined to

         24  fight this as much as I can.

         25                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT SHULMAN:  Thank you
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          2  very much.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Thank you.

          4  Council Member Sabini.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  Thank you,

          6  Mr. Chairman, and thank you for having this hearing,

          7  and thank you for allowing me as not a member of

          8  your Committee to  - -

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Are you a member

         10  of the City Council, that is all?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  I'm a member

         12  of the City Council.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  That is all that

         14  counts.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  But I'm not

         16  on this Committee and it is nice of you to allow us

         17  that are not on the Committee to participate.

         18                 I just want to note for the record,

         19  the Borough President has been extraordinary in her

         20  leadership in balancing the understanding that the

         21  airports are not going to close and that they are an

         22  economic engine for the Borough, but at the same

         23  time have to be corralled so that the problems of

         24  noise, the problems of zoning for air freight, which

         25  is a big problem in Southeast Queens, and this new
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          2  assault of additional slots and the noise that will

          3  ensue from that.  Her current leadership has been

          4  extraordinary, because it is not an easy thing to be

          5  balanced on this issue and still fight for your

          6  constituents and she has been.

          7                 I want to just note that there are

          8  those that would see this High Density Rule raised

          9  up for the convenience for cities where aircraft

         10  aren't servicing, and I understand their problem

         11  and, in fact, that is the problem in the State's

         12  Congressional Delegation, places like Buffalo and

         13  Syracuse and Rochester don't have service to New

         14  York City at a reasonable enough cost, but there are

         15  alternatives.

         16                 You know, McArthur is being expanded,

         17  Stewart Airport has been privatized and is

         18  expanding, and you get the feeling, once in a while,

         19  that the Port of Authority is trying to market

         20  LaGuardia and Kennedy, both in Queens, to defend

         21  against what they might feel is a tenure down the

         22  road assault from the other airports.  Newark in

         23  many ways clipped some of airport traffic and that

         24  is good for us and good for the Port of Authority,

         25  and this has happened at Logan with Wooster and T.
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          2  F. Green Airport in Rhode Island, and I believe that

          3  the Port of Authority is really afraid that Stewart

          4  and McArthur will eventually become significant

          5  airports, they're starting to be now.  And that is

          6  unfortunate, because by their marketing or defending

          7  LaGuardia's turf in trying to increase the slots,

          8  which I believe they're part to, I do, they're

          9  hurting people that live around it, and you're

         10  vigilance is critical.

         11                 And I will also say that while I'm

         12  not a Islamic Prince, pardon the pun, I'm not a

         13  Shiite on term limits, I'm not so anti- term limits,

         14  perhaps some of my colleagues are, I don't think

         15  they're a good idea, but I don't think it's the end

         16  of the world. Losing someone like you who has the

         17  knowledge of the airline industry and knowledge,

         18  experience of this from work as a staff member and

         19  work as a Borough President, is really going to hurt

         20  Queens as a whole, and we will not be a better place

         21  for your leaving, especially on this particular set

         22  of issues involving the airline industry, both pro

         23  airline and anti- noise.

         24                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Council Member
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          2  Stabile, do you have a question for the Borough

          3  President?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE:  First of

          5  all, I want to apologize for being late.  The reason

          6  why I'm late is all the telephone lines in Rockaway

          7  Peninsula, including 911, went out. There was no,

          8  actually 911 way of getting into Rockaway, and phone

          9  service coming into the Peninsula were totally gone

         10  today.  I don't know what happened, we were out

         11  there with phone company until just 20 minutes ago,

         12  but the Rockaway Peninsula, right now, which was

         13  always a threat that we had on our mind when we had

         14  the removal of the fire alarm boxes, and I know you

         15  were involved with that, that we were against the

         16  idea of Rockaway, because Rockaway, right now at

         17  this moment, has no way of getting out of any

         18  problems as far as fire and anything else,

         19  everything has to be done through cellular phones.

         20  So it's a pretty, scary factor.

         21                 I would like to be placed on this

         22  bill as a prime sponsor of it also with permission

         23  of the Chairman.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Same here.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Okay.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE:  Okay.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Okay.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE:  As the

          5  relationship with the Port of Authority, Madam

          6  Borough President, with relationship of the Port of

          7  Authority, I think the relationship has improved a

          8  great deal working with the Port of Authority.  My

          9  biggest problem in representing the Rockaways and

         10  the Howard Beach Community, and, of course, Broad

         11  Channel and everything else is the FAA, being

         12  talking to deaf ears on anything going on with

         13  flights or air noise, this is a while back, me and

         14  the Chairman and some other elected officials met at

         15  LaGuardia opposing to the amount of noise and the

         16  amount of traffic that has been increased.  I have

         17  also met with Chuck, here, from the Port of

         18  Authority and looked at some of the maps of the

         19  planes coming over and the amount of air traffic

         20  that we have at the present time.  I would be,

         21  personally, against any air traffic, coming over,

         22  not even one more plane, because of the noise

         23  problems, if we can remediate the noise and we can

         24  remediate the pollution.  The other factor, which I

         25  know you are aware of, is the dropping of the jet

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            37

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  fuel, was another issue which I think really, really

          3  should be addressed by the FAA.

          4                 I would like to ask you, do you have

          5  a better response with the FAA than most elected

          6  officials, do they respond to you any better than

          7  they respond to us?  I would love to have the

          8  opportunity to meet with the FAA with your

          9  leadership to try to get some sort of answers of

         10  what is their real - -

         11                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT SHULMAN:  Were you

         12  at the office about two weeks when I had a hearing

         13  with the FAA?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE:  Yes.

         15                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT SHULMAN:  You were

         16  there when Arlene Feldman was there.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE:  Yes.  It is

         18  unfortunate, I don't find the FAA to be as helpful

         19  as the Port of Authority is and some other agencies

         20  are.  It seems that the FAA just talks a good story

         21  but they don't - -

         22                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT SHULMAN:  I think

         23  that if you read today's New York Times you will

         24  find out that there is a fellow from Salt Lake City

         25  who is, has asked for 70 additional slots at Kennedy
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          2  to fly to Upstate cities, West Virginia, North

          3  Carolina, Washington.  So you're looking at what may

          4  be approved by US DOT is another 70 slots.  And in

          5  the New York Times today the article says he is

          6  buying or has bought Airbus to do that, those

          7  routes.

          8                 So if you're against any additional

          9  flights then you have go this Mr. Neilman from Salt

         10  Lake, who is - -

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE:  That we have

         12  to deal with.

         13                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT SHULMAN: - -  out

         14  there and acts like he already has gotten the

         15  permission.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE:  One of the

         17  things I applaud the District of Columbia, is that

         18  they don't have flights over certain hours of the

         19  evening, and certain early hours of the morning.  I

         20  mean, I think some of the residents of the

         21  constituency that I represent, I'm sure would

         22  welcome even something to that effect.  If anything,

         23  we were hoping to lessen the flight load, and what

         24  we see that is happening is that through just my own

         25  statistics and through some of the others, we have
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          2  gained.  I think they're looking very heavily into

          3  making both airports very much into commercial

          4  airports as far as cargo, and when they do cargo

          5  it's a heavier, it's a much heavier flight that

          6  takes off and a much heavier flight that lands,

          7  which increases the noise pollution into the areas.

          8                 We have spent some hours out there

          9  with the Port of Authority checking some of the

         10  meters, and we weren't particularly happy with some

         11  of the locations of the temporary noise meters that

         12  we find.  I would definitely be opposed to any extra

         13   - -

         14                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT SHULMAN:  Let me

         15  just say one last thing, because I know there are

         16  other people here who would like to speak, some

         17  years ago the Port of Authority gave us their plans

         18  for the future, and I think, Chuck, you probably

         19  were around then, and they said that there would be

         20  more passengers to the airports, but not more

         21  flights, that the planes themselves would be larger.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE:  Yes.

         23                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT SHULMAN:  And so

         24  what we're looking at now is something entirely

         25  different.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE:  Entirely

          3  different, correct.

          4                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT SHULMAN:  And so,

          5  I'm finished.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Thank you very

          7  much.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE:  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Thanks for your

         10  testimony and for your leadership.

         11                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT SHULMAN:  And thank

         12  you very much for holding the hearing.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  You're welcome.

         14  Okay, Chuck, you're next, the Port Authority.

         15                 By the way, Council Member Stabile,

         16  at the beginning of the hearing and testimony, we

         17  had this discussion about the FAA that they refused

         18  to attend this hearing, in fact, they indicated to

         19  us, to our Counsel, that they don't attend local,

         20  governmental body hearings.  Isn't that nice?

         21  They're a part of a nation of their own, I guess the

         22  nation of D.C., and even though our taxes go to this

         23  country, as well, our Federal taxes, a portion of

         24  it, and a good portion of it, but they don't want

         25  us, well, there are some people who have - -
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE:  Mr.

          3  Chairman, as you know, when we had that joint

          4  hearing, - -

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Right.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: - -  with you

          7  and myself over the dropping of the jet fuel, FAA

          8  made very positively that they wouldn't even attend

          9  the meeting at that point.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Absolutely.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE:  So, I mean,

         12  I think they kind of like they're par for the course

         13  so far.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Well, the game

         15  that Ms. Feldman plays is that she is nice to you on

         16  the telephone and she gets to you and she talks to

         17  you, but talks, like you said, a good game, but

         18  there is no substance to her leadership there and

         19  they do what they want.  And what we have learned,

         20  also, and the Borough President of Queens has

         21  indicated that, that it is even beyond the FAA.  She

         22  has tried to meet with the Secretary of

         23  Transportation, Rodney Slater, and he has refused to

         24  meet with her, so I say we have to move to either

         25  D.C., have a D.C. Address, or an Arkansas address,
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          2  and I'm sure that we can get things done that way,

          3  so, if you have any friends in Arkansas maybe we can

          4  get to this guy. But, obviously, what they're doing,

          5  even if the legislation is passed, Rodney Slater

          6  will have the right to still give the waiver for

          7  additional flights.  Am I correct, Chuck?

          8                 MR. MEARA:  Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Even if it's

         10  passed, I mean out there.

         11                 MR. MEARA:  He has the right today to

         12  grant exemptions to the slot rule based on certain

         13  criteria.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Yes, whatever.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE:  I would hate

         16  to sound like an Al Sharpton on this issue, but

         17  maybe positive demonstrations, maybe we should close

         18  the airport for a couple of days where, you know,

         19  unfortunately, tow trucks break down and everything

         20  else.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:   Would you have

         22  done that?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE:  Would I be

         24  willing to do something like that, oh, I would do it

         25  tomorrow.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  The community has

          3  done that before a long time ago.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE:  I think we

          5  could do it with a little more forceful this time.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  And very

          7  successful, right?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE:  Maybe we can

          9  get both airports together and maybe make them

         10  understand how important it is.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  I will join in any

         12  peaceful and outspoken, whatever we have to do to

         13  demonstration, and even if we have to chain

         14  ourselves together, - -

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE:  Hey, that is

         16  okay.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: - -  that is no

         18  problem.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE:  Something

         20  like this I could really get behind.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Okay.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Mr.

         23  Chairman, I don't know if it is any comfort to you,

         24  but even when the FAA comes, - -

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Right.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: - -  they

          3  make a very, very small contribution to the

          4  discussion.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Absolutely,

          6  absolutely.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  So not

          8  having them there, I don't know, you know, because I

          9  have found that in Albany they did come, because I

         10  guess it is the State, I was Chairman of the Airport

         11  Development Committee, but they added so little, - -

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Absolutely.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: - -  so

         14  little to the conversation.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  And then what

         16  happens is that any conversation you have with them,

         17  they may talk a good game, they may talk to you

         18  nicely, but absolutely there is no substance to

         19  whatever their words and to whatever commitments

         20  they make, because they, obviously, don't care.  And

         21  we're here to do this together, and I will join you,

         22  whatever you want us to do as Chairman of this

         23  Committee.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  People are

         25  ready, let me tell you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Okay, we're good.

          3  Either we should start with something very soon.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Maybe we

          5  need Al Sharpton.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Okay, Chuck, do

          7  you want to identify yourself for the record?

          8                 MR. MEARA:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          9  My name is Charles Meara, and I am the Manager of

         10  State and Local Relations for the Port of Authority

         11  of New York and New Jersey.

         12                 Thank you very much for this

         13  opportunity to appear to before you on Resolution

         14  654, calling upon the Congress of the United States,

         15  the President of the United States, and the

         16  Secretary of Transportation, not to authorize an

         17  increase in the number of flights at John F. Kennedy

         18  and LaGuardia Airports until the potential adverse

         19  impacts of those flights on noise levels have been

         20  analyzed and solutions devised.

         21                 Mr. Chairman, on behalf of the Port

         22  of Authority I want to congratulate you and the

         23  other sponsors of this Resolution for your efforts

         24  on behalf of those citizens of New York impacted by

         25  aircraft noise.  I am pleased to inform you that the
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          2  Port of Authority does not support efforts to remove

          3  the High Density Rule at JFK and LaGuardia.  In

          4  fact, Mr. Robert Kelly, our Director of our Aviation

          5  Department, wrote to US DOT Secretary Rodney Slater,

          6  as early as February 24th of this year, to oppose

          7  this effort, and I thought you might be interested

          8  in this letter, which is attached.

          9                 It says, "that the Port of Authority

         10  as the operator of John F. Kennedy and LaGuardia

         11  Airports, two of the three airports that would

         12  affected by the Administration's proposals to phase-

         13  out flight restrictions at those facilities, and I'm

         14  writing to express our disappointment that this

         15  proposal was included in your FAA Reauthorization

         16  Bill, without any prior notice to or discussion with

         17  the Port of Authority, even though there was ample

         18  opportunities to do so with both you and FAA

         19  Administrator Garvey over the past few months.

         20            We did not dispute the appropriateness of

         21  the Administration revisiting the issue of the

         22  continuing need for the High Density Rule as traffic

         23  and congestion delay management tool, which was its

         24  original purpose.  We believe, however that the

         25  recommendation to end slot restrictions for small
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          2  regional jets at the end of September 2000, and all

          3  aircraft at the end of September 2004 is at such

          4  significance that input from those most affected

          5  should have been sought.  The Port of Authority has

          6  historically supported the continuation of the High

          7  Density Rule, in large part, because of our concern

          8  that parochial airline scheduling practices would

          9  result in even more congestion than now exist, if

         10  slot restrictions were rescinded.

         11                 We are fully aware of the price,

         12  choice, destination and other benefits of the

         13  traveling public that flow from increased air

         14  service.  However, those benefits must be weighed in

         15  the context of our concerns about noise, delay, and

         16  congestion.  As a consequence we have argued that

         17  the first order of business should not be the

         18  elimination of the rule, but rather more efficient

         19  utilization of existing slots,"  which is really

         20  what you all were talking about before.

         21                  "There seems to be some interest in

         22  Congress in mandating some slot exemptions at high

         23  density airports, but not necessarily eliminating

         24  the rule.  If, however, the Administration

         25  prevails," and since the time of the letter in
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          2  February, the Congress, both in the House and in the

          3  Senate has taken action, as was pointed out by the

          4  Chairman earlier, but this was when the

          5  Administration had made the proposal, "we believe

          6  that it should only be done within the comprehensive

          7  airspace redesign effort now underway.  This will

          8  assure that the potential for unrestricted aircraft

          9  movements is consistent with FAA views on the

         10  operations capacity of our region's airspace.  At

         11  the same time we strongly urge you to make

         12  sensitivity to local noise a paramount concern as

         13  you move to maximize regional airspace capacity."

         14                 And then there is another paragraph

         15  about a different matter, and it is signed by, the

         16  Director of our Aviation Department, Bob Kelly.

         17                 In conclusion, I want to thank you

         18  again for the opportunity to appear before you, and,

         19  obviously, if anybody has any questions I would be

         20  happy to try to answer them even though I, you know,

         21  Councilwoman Marshall and I have discussed this many

         22  times, Councilman Stabile and I have discussed this

         23  many times, and, in fact, I have had the pleasure to

         24  appear before this Committee a number of times on

         25  this issue.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  In prior testimony

          3  back in January 29th of 1998, the Port of Authority

          4  testified that 90 percent of the aircraft operating

          5  at Kennedy and 75 percent of the fleet at LaGuardia

          6  were already at Stage III Aircraft, which,

          7  obviously, is designed to be quieter. If complaints

          8  are still being lodged against airport noise, do you

          9  agree that states that the airplanes have not been a

         10  very effective way of reducing the noise pollution?

         11                 MR. MEARA:  Well, I think that there

         12  are a number of ways to address the noise problem.

         13  One is, as the Borough President was talking about

         14  before with the routes, the air traffic patterns,

         15  the takeoff procedures.  And the other, the most

         16  important way is through the elimination of the

         17  Stage II Aircraft, and the bringing on board the

         18  Stage III.  Now there is no doubt that the Stage III

         19  Aircraft is quieter than the Stage II, and that, but

         20  that doesn't mean that Stage III Aircraft doesn't

         21  make any noise.

         22                 We have, in fact, written to FAA

         23  Administrator Garvey back in March, urging that the

         24  FAA begin an exhaustive process for bringing even

         25  more quieter, what would in affect be Stage IV
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          2  Aircraft into the system.  There is a lot of

          3  research that is necessary to do that, but we would

          4  agree with you that there is still noise even with

          5  the Stage III Aircraft, and that is why the FAA

          6  should begin now to investigate the possibility of

          7  even quieter Stage IV Aircraft.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Just for one

          9  second, I know that Council Member Stabile has an

         10  emergency back down in his district, and he has to

         11  go back out there, so for, as a courtesy, how do you

         12  vote on this Resolution?  It has been amended to

         13  include congestion and air traffic delays as well,

         14  not only the noise.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE:  Fantastic.

         16  I agree with it 100 percent and I like what I hear

         17  from you, Chuck.  The only thing I would like to say

         18  before I cast my vote is that anything, any help

         19  that we can get from the Port of Authority, and I

         20  believe that FAA should not be the sacred cow, and

         21  I'm sure the Chairman and I'm sure anyone who is

         22  near an airport who has to be burdened with this

         23  noise and burdened with the pollution factor, sooner

         24  or later push comes to shove, we have to do

         25  something, maybe a little bit more drastic to let
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          2  them know that we are here and that we are not

          3  stupid, we're not dumb, we're not a bunch of morons

          4  that we're going to accept them just dumping on us

          5  from year after year.

          6                 I commend you and your office for the

          7  help you have given us.

          8                 MR. MEARA:  Thank you.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE:  I vote yes

         10  on this Resolution, and thank you, Mr. Chairman, for

         11  letting me leave.  The reason why I'm leaving is we

         12  had just, getting everything in Rockaway to make

         13  sure that the communication is not dead and an

         14  ambulance to go out there.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 MR. MEARA:  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Going back, so

         18  this obviously the Stage III Aircraft have not

         19  really been effective?

         20                 MR. MEARA:  Well, no, I think they

         21  have been effective.  Stage III Aircraft is much

         22  quieter than a Stage II Aircraft, but as I

         23  suggested, we have been urging the FAA to go even

         24  further and to explore the possibility of Stage IV

         25  Aircraft.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Yes.

          3                 MR. MEARA:  The other thing is, as

          4  the Borough President pointed out, for instance, the

          5  Delta Shuttle, although it meets Stage III criteria,

          6  they're mostly Hush- Kitted Stage III Aircraft, and,

          7  in fact, those aircraft are much noisier than the

          8  new Stage III Aircraft, so that is a problem as

          9  well.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  In fact, the way

         11  we understand it is that there are many older planes

         12  in JFK and LaGuardia that are using the Hush- Kitted

         13  to comply to Stage III?

         14                 MR. MEARA:  Well it's a particular

         15  problem at LaGuardia, especially with the Delta

         16  Shuttle.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  And what, can we

         18  do anything about them, put the pressure on them,

         19  because they do get new planes all the time?

         20                 MR. MEARA:  Well, the Borough

         21  President has been very active on that, in fact, she

         22  brought the President of the Delta Shuttle out to

         23  her office, where we joined her in urging, you know,

         24  that they move from the Hush- Kitted Stage III

         25  Aircraft to a newer, technologically, superior,
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          2  quieter Stage III Aircraft.  And it doesn't appear

          3  at this time it's been successful.  We have did the

          4  same thing with U.S. Airways - -

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Right.

          6                 MR. MEARA: - -  who operates the

          7  Shuttle, and they, at the, shall I say, request of

          8  the Borough President are going to be moving to a

          9  newer, quieter, Stage III, Non- Hush- Kitted Stage

         10  III Aircraft.  So, I think it is incumbent on all of

         11  us to work with the Borough President on the Delta

         12  Shuttle situation, because those are, you know, a

         13  flight in and a flight out every hour, so that has a

         14  real impact.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Yes.

         16                 MR. MEARA:  I'm sorry, two flights in

         17  and two flights out, I stand corrected by Councilman

         18  Sabini.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Oh, you're talking

         20  about Delta, well, why do four?

         21                 MR. MEARA:  Well, one into

         22  Washington, one into Boston, one from Washington,

         23  one from Boston.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  And so then you

         25  have four planes coming in.
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          2                 MR. MEARA:  Four, that is right.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  And then you have

          4  U.S. Air, which also is still using the Hush- Kitted

          5  Aircraft.

          6                 MR. MEARA:  Well, there not the Stage

          7  III yet, but, at least, when they do go to, and

          8  they're all required by the end of this year to be

          9  at Stage III.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Right.

         11                 MR. MEARA:  So the question for the

         12  airport is whether they are going to be Hush- Kitted

         13  Stage III or real quiet, technologically, superior

         14  Stage III, and we can all work with the Borough

         15  President, you know, because that is a real worthy

         16  effort.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  What do you know

         18  about the Stage IV and the development of Stage IV,

         19  and are more airlines going to start using that?

         20                 MR. MEARA:  Well that is what I was

         21  just talking about.  We wrote to Administrator

         22  Garvey, the FAA Administrator, back in March, urging

         23  that, I will just quoted from the last paragraph,

         24   "The Port of Authority believes that the new noise

         25  certification limit should be developed now.  Stage
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          2  III Aircraft of the late 1990s are perceptively

          3  quieter than Stage III noise certification limits.

          4  Research currently conducted by the joint FAA/NASA

          5  Subsonic Noise Reduction Technology Program has a

          6  goal of 10db reduction from the 1992 baseline," and

          7  a 10db reduction would be a dramatic lessening of

          8  noise.  I mean, that is a very significant number.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Yes.

         10                 MR. MEARA:  But it is going to take a

         11  lot of research, it is going to take some time, so

         12  by the time you implement it, it will be some time.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Council Member

         14  Lopez, do you have a question, and then Council

         15  Member Marshall?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Yes.

         17                 MR. MEARA:  Yes, Ma'am.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Does this

         19  work?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  It should work.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Yes, it is,

         22  we can hear you.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Can you help

         24  me to understand what is the economic factor behind

         25  this, who is benefiting from removing this
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          2  regulation, what is the air flight company who is

          3  benefiting from this, from where they come, what

          4  economic edge is in here?

          5                 MR. MEARA:  Well, I'm only

          6  speculating, but my assumption is that there are

          7  airlines who don't have access to New York City now

          8  because they can't get a slot.  Into an effect, you

          9  know, a very lucrative market, who want to have the

         10  ability to compete in New York City.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Then the

         12  companies that are here now will oppose this,

         13  because it is not the their advantage to have it

         14  open.

         15                 MR. MEARA:  Well, I think that gets

         16  tricky, some of them would oppose it, some of them

         17  may support it, some of them opposed the High

         18  Density Rule, but many would have opposed changing

         19  the High Density Rule.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  The Federal

         21  Government is arguing that this will bring jobs and

         22  increase economic development in our area?

         23                 MR. MEARA:  I think that, again, this

         24  is not, I mean, we don't agree with the position,

         25  but I think that there position would be - -
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  I am asking

          3  you the question understanding that you don't

          4  represent that.

          5                 MR. MEARA:  I think that they would

          6  argue that it would increase competition in the

          7  industry, and increased competition would, perhaps

          8  lead to jobs, perhaps lead to reduced fares.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Then it would

         10  be an alleged benefit for the consumer who would

         11  utilize - -

         12                 MR. MEARA:  I assume that that is

         13  what they would say, yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  That kind of

         15  argument.

         16                 MR. MEARA:  Exactly.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Did they have,

         18  to your knowledge, publicized or make public any

         19  document where they state these positions, or this

         20  has not been done?

         21                 MR. MEARA:  No, I haven't seen that

         22  and that is one of the points we made in the letter,

         23  that it was done without any, you know, consultation

         24  with people who would be impacted either by noise in

         25  the community or by an operator of an airport.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  And to your

          3  knowledge you have never received a documentation, a

          4  piece a paper stating what are the reasons to do

          5  this?

          6                 MR. MEARA:  No, I don't believe that

          7  we have ever seen that.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Okay, Mr.

          9  Chairman?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Yes?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  I wanted to

         12  seek for your permission to join the resolution as a

         13  prime sponsor?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Absolutely,

         15  absolutely.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  And thank you

         17  very much.

         18                 MR. MEARA:  Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Council Member

         20  Marshall.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Yes, Chuck,

         22  how many flights would you say fly in and out of

         23  LaGuardia on a daily basis?

         24                 MR. MEARA: It's about 350,000 a year,

         25  so I would say 800 or 900 a day.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  All right.

          3                 MR. MEARA:  Which half would be

          4  arrivals and half would be departures, that is kind

          5  of rough though.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  That is

          7  rough, and to add more flights to that would really

          8  be devastating to us, particularly because of the

          9  close proximity of the airport to the community.  It

         10  is from Long Island City all the way back to

         11  Bayside, we're all right next to the airport,

         12  particularly the area that Council Member Sabini and

         13  I represent.

         14                 MR. MEARA:  Right.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  That is,

         16  yes, I thought that it was more like 1,000 flights a

         17  day, also.

         18                 MR. MEARA:  Well, 800 or 900 is

         19  pretty close.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Okay, all

         21  right.  I'm not going to give them any credit, now,

         22  if it is 1,000, it's 1,000, but- -

         23                 MR. MEARA:  We can say around 1,000.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Yes, and

         25  how many more do they want to add?
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          2                 MR. MEARA:  Well the proposal would

          3  be unlimited.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Oh, God.

          5  We would be at their mercy entirely.

          6                 MR. MEARA:  Well from the community

          7  perspective there are noise concerns, but there are

          8  also congestion concerns and delay concerns.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Yes, I

         10  know, I had to depend upon those planes for nine

         11  years.

         12                 MR. MEARA:  Right.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  And the

         14  little ones are the first ones to get grounded

         15  because we have got to give way to the bigger

         16  planes, but I was interested in how many and how

         17  many it would add.  And if it is unlimited, we can't

         18  even put a number on it, that is extremely

         19  dangerous, that is extremely dangerous and fearful

         20  of the community.  We just recently had a shut down,

         21  I mean, where the air traffic controllers had to

         22  rely on very crude methods of keeping planes apart.

         23                 MR. MEARA:  Right.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Imagine and

         25  we have had a few crashes at both LaGuardia and
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          2  Kennedy, imagine if we add to that congestion,

          3  particularly where there is close proximity to the

          4  community which makes it even more detrimental.

          5                 Mr. Chairman, I want to thank you for

          6  holding this hearing because this is something that

          7  is very, very much an issue in our area and all up

          8  and down the northern coast of Queens, we're very,

          9  very concerned about this issue.

         10                 MR. MEARA:  Well, as you know, I very

         11  familiar with those concerns.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Yes, I know

         13  you are, right.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Just before you

         15  go, I'm sorry, Council Member Rodriguez, I'm sorry.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ:  Thank you,

         17  Mr. Chair. Let me apologize for being late, and I

         18  just have a few questions. You are going to be

         19  adding additional slots, I guess, not you -        MR

         20  . MEARA:  We're not.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: - -

         22  they're proposing to add additional slots.

         23                 MR. MEARA:  Right.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ:  And you

         25  manage the airports.
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          2                 MR. MEARA:  Right.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ:  Can you

          4  control the number of slots, can you say, basically,

          5  well, we're limiting the number of planes that we're

          6  going to handle on a daily basis to 1,000?

          7                 MR. MEARA:  Because we don't handle

          8  the planes, it's the FAA that handles the planes,

          9  and if the Congress passes this legislation and the

         10  President signs this legislation, then, you know, as

         11  an airport operator, you know, we have very limited

         12  leverage to be able to do anything.  It's the FAA

         13  that will line up the planes to takeoff, and it's

         14  the FAA through the Control Tower to make

         15  arrangements for them to land.  So as an airport

         16  operator, you know, I mean, we couldn't say, no, you

         17  can't come.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ:  But I

         19  guess there are certain limits to the amount of

         20  planes that can takeoff and arrive to any airport,

         21  does the FAA determine that number?  Like I guess

         22  when you get an elevator, you know, no more than 15

         23  people, do they do that, do they say more than X

         24  number of planes can arrive or leave JFK, and

         25  therefore, we will allow this many to come in, and

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            63

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  you have no control over that, is that kind of like

          3  the way it works?

          4                 MR. MEARA:  Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ:  Oh, okay,

          6  I didn't understand now.  I heard from, I think it

          7  was Council Member Stabile, he mentioned that in

          8  Washington, D.C. They have a curfew or something

          9  like that.  Do you know anything about how that

         10  works and can you tell me how it works in

         11  Washington, and is it being done here, is not being

         12  done here, and why it isn't being done here, if it

         13  isn't?

         14                 MR. MEARA:  At Washington National,

         15  it is a Congressionally passed, Congressionally

         16  mandated curfew.  As an airport operator that

         17  receives Federal Funds, you're limited, if you're

         18  not the Washington D.C. Airport operator, on your

         19  ability to impose a curfew.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ:  So we

         21  don't have any and we have no way to impose that.

         22                 MR. MEARA:  That is right.  The

         23  members of the Congress took care of the Washington

         24  situation.  I have no idea why.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ:  Me

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            64

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  neither, I can't figure it out.  Okay, let me tell

          3  the Chairman that I would like to be put on as a

          4  prime sponsor of this bill, this resolution, and

          5  thank you very much.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Council Member

          7  McCaffrey.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  Hello,

          9  Chuck, how are you today?

         10                 MR. MEARA:  Councilman, fine, how are

         11  you?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  Good,

         13  good.

         14                 MR. MEARA:  So far, I'm better than

         15  yesterday.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  I'm sure.

         17                 MR. MEARA:  Am I going to continue to

         18  be better than yesterday?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  Yes, you

         20  certainly will. The obvious answer to the last

         21  question is, Congress, of course, is always prone to

         22  take care of itself and to hell with everybody else,

         23  and as one of those folks, who at 3:07 a.m. Hears a

         24  flight coming into LaGuardia Airport over my home in

         25  Woodside, I understand what people are talking about
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          2  in terms of having the type of curfews, and those

          3  folks who are much closer to the airport, obviously,

          4  go through this.

          5                 Now, the question that many of us

          6  have is that this is in essence, built as an

          7  argument between giving consumers greater choice,

          8  potential lower air fares, et cetera, on one hand,

          9  versus the quality of life concerns for those of us

         10  who are in proximity to the airport.  It is our

         11  understanding, however, that in some of the proposed

         12  lines or carriers that would come in that they are

         13  in essence duplicating existing services, not

         14  necessarily going to other cities that are serviced

         15  here in a substantial portion; is that true?

         16                 MR. MEARA:  Well the Chairman was

         17  asking before about the Secretary's current ability

         18  to grant exemptions to the slot roll, and I

         19  mentioned that there is a series of criteria.  One

         20  of the criteria is, it's supposed to be to a route

         21  that isn't currently served.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  Right.

         23                 MR. MEARA:  As I understand the

         24  proposal, currently before Congress, there are no

         25  criteria.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  Correct.

          3                 MR. MEARA:  Anybody could come in and

          4  gain a, you know, if they wanted to, go to

          5  Washington or Boston, they would be free to.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  So rather

          7  than the ability to fly as cited by Council Member

          8  Marshall to an Upstate city, it is not necessarily

          9  going to result in that.

         10                 MR. MEARA:  Clearly.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  And

         12  secondly, the correlation between the safety record

         13  of the airlines that are what we call the low fare

         14  airlines versus the traditional, and certainly I

         15  think everybody agrees that air fares are

         16  astronomically high, artificially high, certainly

         17  not in reality to the costs of the airlines these

         18  days, but certainly that the safety record on them

         19  is much better than the airlines that the people

         20  associate out there, I don't want to mention

         21  specific ones because I will probably have - -

         22                 MR. MEARA:  Without mentioning

         23  specific airlines I would probably agree.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  Right, but

         25  that is, in fact, their safety history is a much
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          2  more checkered one than the major carriers.

          3                 MR. MEARA:  I think the FAA would

          4  have more concerns on safety issues as it relates to

          5  those new carriers than the older, more established

          6  carriers.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  Can you

          8  tell us the number of incidents, and granted the

          9  Port of Authority does not operate the Tower, but,

         10  for example, at LaGuardia and at JFK in terms of

         11  near misses, because of the current heavy volume of

         12  traffic?

         13                 MR. MEARA:  I would have to get that

         14  for you, I just don't have it offhand.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  Okay, I

         16  think that that is something that we're all - -

         17                 MR. MEARA:  At both airports?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:   I mean,

         19  certainly, a tragedy anywhere in terms of involving

         20  flights is immense.  The potential magnitude is,

         21  obviously, far greater because of the tight,

         22  residential numbers that are around the airport.

         23                 MR. MEARA:  Right, I could get that

         24  for you.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  Okay, and
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          2  I would appreciate that, and certainly, I appreciate

          3  what the Chair is doing on this, because many of us

          4  have said that while we want to give consumers

          5  greater choice and the opportunity in terms of lower

          6  air fares, there are certain limits, and the safety

          7  issue is one in which we believe takes paramount

          8  importance, and so that is why I think we're all on

          9  the same page in calling on Congress to take some

         10  affirmative steps here.  And I think we would all be

         11  very disappointed not to see Congressional action to

         12  give us relief.  If there is no such action, then

         13  certainly it would be a failure for the people in

         14  the City of New York.

         15                 MR. MEARA:  Well we were discussing

         16  before the House may be voting on this as early as

         17  next month.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  Thank you

         19  very much.

         20                 MR. MEARA:  Okay, thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Council Member

         22  Eisland.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  Good

         24  afternoon, not to be a voice unheard from as prime

         25  sponsor on this resolution, particularly in the
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          2  North Bronx, we seem to be in some new flight

          3  patterns, and this has been going on for a couple of

          4  years, when I say new, it is really a couple of

          5  years now where people with backyards and high- rise

          6  people with terraces, literally at certain times of

          7  the day can't use them.

          8                 I have been in touch with the FAA,

          9  and with the people that are doing the study for the

         10  Eastern Corridor, - -

         11                 MR. MEARA:  Right.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: - -  as far

         13  as flight patterns are concerned, and we have even

         14  made a record of the most egregious times when the

         15  noise is the loudest, and they have told me that

         16  they will meld into their new patterns some of the

         17  concerns that I have expressed there, and I'm sure

         18  that I'm not the only one who has the ability to in

         19  an informal way track those concerns. Are you in

         20  touch at all with the people who are actually doing

         21  the new plan and the new Corridor for the Eastern

         22  Region?

         23                 MR. MEARA:  I'm not personally, but

         24  the Port of Authority, as an organization was in the

         25  forefront of urging, you know, the FAA to conduct
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          2  this study, working with them to secure the funding

          3  from Congress and will be a part of any group that,

          4  you know, goes out and actually does the work.

          5                 As of now, though, the work is being

          6  conducted by the FAA itself.  But we have every

          7  intention of being a major player, because it

          8  obviously will impact on all three of our airports

          9  and so many citizens who live around our airports.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  May I

         11  suggest that before the horse is out of the barn,

         12  so- to- speak, this is going on right now, it is

         13  more than halfway through.

         14                 MR. MEARA:  No, I  - -

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  As far as

         16  collecting data; is that not so?  Because that is

         17  the information that - -

         18                 MR. MEARA:  The study really study

         19  about a month ago, it's going to be three to five

         20  years before - -

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  We have been

         22  talking to them for over a year about that; was that

         23  in the planning stages when we were talking to them?

         24                 MR. MEARA:  The study has just

         25  officially has been kicked off in the past month or
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          2  two, but, believe me, we have every intention of

          3  being very involved.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  Are you from

          5  the FAA?

          6                 MR. MEARA:  No, the Port of

          7  Authority.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  No, the

          9  gentleman?

         10                 MR. MEARA:  No, he is from the Port

         11  of Authority.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  I see, but

         13  you're more in touch with the study people?  Can we

         14  ask the gentleman to come up to the table, I just

         15  wanted to make a suggestion or maybe you're doing

         16  this already?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Identify yourself

         18  for the record.

         19                 MR. TRIGALLI:  Ralph Trigalli,

         20  Manager of Government Relations for the Aviation

         21  Department.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  Oh, hi, how

         23  are you?

         24                 MR. TRIGALLI:  Very good, thank you.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  Can you work
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          2  out some kind of more formalized method for all the

          3  Council members, perhaps some kind of forms that we

          4  can give to our constituents that are having this

          5  problem, so that before any major decisions are

          6  made, it sounds like we have quite a bit of time, I

          7  had been under the impression that it was moving

          8  along faster, we could have direct input so, at

          9  least, I mean there are no guarantees is that what

         10  we say will actually happen, but, at least, there

         11  wouldn't be any excuse by the people that are doing

         12  the studies that they haven't heard directly,

         13  particularly from the neighborhoods that feel like

         14  they're under siege?  It seems silly for me and for

         15  everybody to do their own informal surveys and

         16  collection of data when you can do something that is

         17  more standardized.

         18                 MR. TRIGALLI:  I'm in very regular

         19  contact with the Manager of the Airspace Redesign

         20  Project.  They have been talking about, as you

         21  mentioned, for over a year, but they just secured

         22  the funding very recently so that is why it just got

         23  kicked off, the actual work.  The staff has been

         24  assembled, but they haven't actually done any of the

         25  modeling until very recently.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  But what do

          3  you think of the suggestion that I'm making?

          4                 MR. TRIGALLI:  The FAA has actually

          5  asked the Port of Authority to assist them in

          6  outreach to the local communities, since the staff

          7  that they have doing it don't have a lot of

          8  knowledge of the local communities around the

          9  airports.  So they have asked us for some input into

         10  an outreach plan, and the FAA fully intends to do

         11  public meetings, public hearings.  I have included

         12  Chairman Dear's Transportation Committee as a

         13  primary resource for them to go to, to get input,

         14  and they are considering that outreach plan right

         15  now.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  In addition,

         17  though, to what you have said, which is all good,

         18  I'm asking for something more specific, which I

         19  would like you take back to them, rather than having

         20  anecdotal information and not everybody can get to

         21  these hearings and not everybody cares to write a

         22  report, can we design something that we, as elected

         23  officials can give to our constituents that are

         24  concerned that the FAA will recognize as part of

         25  their survey?
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          2                 MR. TRIGALLI:  Well, I will certainly

          3   - -

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  Can you

          5  attempt to implement that?

          6                 MR. TRIGALLI:  I will certainly

          7  mention that to them, but any Airspace Redesign

          8  changes that are going to take place are going to

          9  have go through an environmental process.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  You're a

         11  step ahead of me.

         12                 MR. TRIGALLI:  Right.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  I'm still in

         14  the collection of data stage, and I would like to

         15  have as much input, so I would like you to respond

         16  back to the Chair and to the Committee, if you would

         17  take the suggestion I just made to them?

         18                 MR. TRIGALLI:  I will deliver your

         19  message, yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  Thank you.

         21  My next question is, is there no way to balance off

         22  the concerns, and when we say local community, I

         23  hope you are not just talking about the immediate

         24  radius to New York Airports, because obviously - -

         25                 MR. MEARA:  Chairman Dear would never
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          2  let me do that.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  Thank you,

          4  well neither would this former Chairperson being a

          5  Bronxite and having a lot of concerns, but it just

          6  would seem to me there should be some way that the

          7  Federal Government can deal with the allocations of

          8  the already existing slots without adding more, that

          9  will pay some attention to the rest of our State.  I

         10  mean, they do have a crying need as far as commerce

         11  is concerned and economic development to be better

         12  served.  I mean, you can get tickets to Paris or to

         13  San Francisco for a lot less than you can get to

         14  Rochester or Buffalo, it's absolutely ridiculous,

         15  and I have sympathy for Upstate.  On the other hand,

         16  I certainly would never say that we should add more

         17  slots, that would be ridiculous.  Is there no way,

         18  though, that there could be a more equitable

         19  distribution?

         20                 MR. MEARA:  We believe that there can

         21  be.  We believe that the slots  as they're allocated

         22  now do not make sense and it wouldn't be that

         23  difficult to reallocate the slots to be able to take

         24  care of some of the people Upstate, while not

         25  increasing the number of overall slots that are at
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          2  the airport.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  So how do we

          4  help you?

          5                 MR. MEARA:  Well, I think that the

          6  resolution that Chairman Dear and you and the others

          7  have introduced is a first step towards, a) alerting

          8  the Congressional Delegation from the City as to

          9  your concerns, I think a number of them are aware of

         10  the problem.  I think, frankly, that we're dealing

         11  with the situation where the Chairman of the House

         12  Committee is from Pennsylvania, and the Chairman of

         13  the Senate Committee is from Arizona, and I would be

         14  misleading you if I didn't say you had your work cut

         15  out for you, but we have made our opposition to this

         16  known to whoever will listen, and I think everybody

         17  here should weigh in and make their position known.

         18  I mean you do the best you can.

         19                 You know how it is dealing with the

         20  Legislature, it's not always easy, but you do the

         21  best you can.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  Well, I

         23  thank you, and we're well on the way, Chairman Dear,

         24  myself and the other sponsors of this legislation

         25  that hopefully that we will pass today, but would
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          2  you continue to be in touch to us and give us other

          3  creative suggestions as to how to aid you in

          4  accomplishing some kind of fairer balance?

          5                 MR. MEARA: Oh, sure.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  And we stand

          7  ready to do whatever we need to do in Washington,

          8  you know, through the City Council's auspices or in

          9  any other way that we need to do it.

         10                 MR. MEARA:  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Thank you.  I

         12  don't think there are any other questions.  Thank

         13  you very much, again, for your testimony and

         14  support.

         15                 MR. MEARA:  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  And please send

         17  back regards to the Executive Director.

         18                 MR. MEARA:  I certainly will.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  I don't know about

         20  the Chairman, I used to say the Chairman, but the

         21  Chairman is a New Jerseyite, who is interested more

         22  in stealing our money.

         23                 MR. MEARA:  I will express this to

         24  the Executive Director.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  No, it's okay, you
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          2  can say it to him.  I have one other member who has

          3  to attend another meeting, how do you vote, two

          4  other meetings, three, okay.  Council Member

          5  Eisland, it's Proposed Reso. No. 654- A because we

          6  just added a few more words.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  Thank you

          8  for the opportunity and I'm glad that we were able

          9  to do this legislation. My position, I think from my

         10  questioning is clear, and I vote a resounding aye.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Okay, Freed.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  Thank you, Mr.

         13  Chair, and as previously, I ask if I could also be a

         14  co- prime in this, for some reason I thought I was

         15  on it, but, great, and I'm especially glad that

         16  we're doing this.  I'm appalled at the idea that

         17  they might be getting rid of the High Density Rule

         18  for LaGuardia and Kennedy, it seems very, very

         19  foolish and certainly it ignores the very real needs

         20  of the people are being plagued by the aircraft

         21  patterns as they are.  So, I'm thrilled to be able

         22  to vote aye on this, thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Council Member

         24  Nelson.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  I also
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          2  request to be a co prime on this bill, and I vote

          3  aye.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Okay, Seymour

          5  Schwartz, identify yourself for the record.

          6                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Good afternoon, Mr.

          7  Chairman, members of the Council.  I'm Seymour

          8  Schwartz, and I'm an Officer speaking on behalf of

          9  the Queens Civic Congress, a coalition of over 30

         10  community organizations spanning the Borough of

         11  Queens.

         12                 Queens is an ever growing borough of

         13  nearly two million people, no longer a village, but

         14  a bulging, compacted city, and tens of thousands of

         15  our residents are entrapped in their homes and

         16  residences of their life choice by the incessant

         17  fury of roaring, screaming aircraft engines from day

         18  into night.  Only one minute of flight time

         19  separates our two major airports between and around

         20  our whole communities and their flight paths.

         21                 Can you not imagine the incessant,

         22  ear- shattering, nerve exposing, and home- rattling

         23  roar of engines repeated every 58 seconds day or

         24  night, seven days a week, 350,000 takeoffs and

         25  landings a year?  Who could not resist the
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          2  compassion and the humanity to alleviate a problem

          3  that so profoundly imposes on the lives and the

          4  health of so many?

          5                 In Louisville, Kentucky, an entire

          6  town nearby to its airport is being abandoned and

          7  relocated, every home, church, store and institution

          8  at the expense that is planned to approach half a

          9  billion dollars.  We, in Queens and New York cannot

         10  do that, but we must find the ways quickly to

         11  control and bring relief to this searing problem of

         12  noise and pollution stemming from the aircraft

         13  activity at the two Queens airports.

         14                 And so the position of the Queens

         15  Civic Congress is as follows:

         16                 1.  The Congress opposes any

         17  exemptions in the High Density Rule and calls for an

         18  immediate moratorium on additional flights or slots

         19  at LaGuardia Airport.  Set statutory limitations on

         20  the number of operations at New York's Metropolitan

         21  Airports, and the restriction on all flights,

         22  scheduled and unscheduled except for emergency

         23  operations to the hours of 7:00 a.m. To 11:00 p.m.

         24                 2.  We call for improved noise

         25  abatement procedures, including an immediate ban on
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          2  flights by any commercial jet liners built before

          3  1980.  We urge that there be a change in takeoff

          4  frequency from every 58 seconds to a much wider time

          5  interval to intenuate the unremitting jet noise

          6  created by the High Density Rule.

          7                 3.  We urge the establishment and

          8  enforcement of formal accountability by the Port of

          9  Authority and the Federal Aviation Administration to

         10  the Environmental Protection Administration, an

         11  independent citizen representation.  Also, the

         12  reinstatement and strengthening enforcement of the

         13  Quiet Communities Act of 1978, and the Noise Control

         14  Act of 1972.

         15                 4.  The Queens Civic Congress

         16  recommends taking immediate steps to reduce the

         17  affect of aircraft noise and pollution from jet

         18  exhaust and the dumping of jet fuel on human,

         19  mental, and physical health and damage to the

         20  environment.  Also, the continued installation of

         21  air sensing devices, particularly on the Queens side

         22  of runways 13- 31 at LaGuardia Airport.

         23                 5.  We call for the adjustment of

         24  flight schedules to more evenly spread aircraft

         25  noise among the communities, and the adjustment of
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          2  the distribution of flights off of LaGuardia runway

          3  13 since northeast Queens endures 95 percent of all

          4  takeoffs at LaGuardia Airport.

          5                 Finally, the QCC urges the selection

          6  of a better site or sites as currently proposed for

          7  a terminal Doppler Weather Radar System that will

          8  maximize safety at both LaGuardia and Kennedy

          9  International Airports and would be acceptable to

         10  the surrounding communities.

         11                 We, therefore, fully endorse the

         12  proposed resolution 654, and we thank you very much

         13  for this opportunity to share our views with your

         14  Committee.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Two short

         16  questions, Council Member Lopez, and then Council

         17  Member McCaffrey.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Thank you.

         19  Can you tell me when did you learned about this

         20  proposed examination of the rules that exist now by

         21  the Federal Government?

         22                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  I think the first

         23  mention in the press was something like two months

         24  ago, and they made it clear or hinted that our new

         25  Senator, Sayvers, the change, and the suggestion
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          2  that the Clinton Administration wants the new

          3  proposal.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  I want to be

          5  noticed on the record of the City Council that if

          6  this was beginning to be known to the communities

          7  surrounding this area two months ago, that is an

          8  indication that this has not been even properly

          9  notified or publicized for the people in the City

         10  and that should be quoted and notice on the record

         11  for the purpose of the City Council.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Council Member

         13  McCaffrey.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  Let me

         15  just say your statement was excellent.  We certainly

         16  agree with you in many ways that the choice of the

         17  Doppler being at Floyd Bennett is a poor one, that

         18  certainly, their own internal studies indicated that

         19  the maximum effectiveness of the facility if it was

         20  in Long Island would have been the premier choice,

         21  there are certain ecological questions about Floyd

         22  Bennett as well and the potential negative impact

         23  there.  So I appreciate your raising that concern,

         24  it was obvious for political considerations that

         25  Senator D'Amato did not want to have it out in Long
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          2  Island, used his power to prevent that, and that

          3  ultimately, I think, is going to weaken the safety

          4  for folks who fly as well as who live near the

          5  airports.  So, thank you for your statement.

          6                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Thank you, I'm very

          7  much encouraged by your remarks, thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Thank you very

          9  much for your statement today, thank you.  Arnold

         10  Gilbert.

         11                 MR. GILBERT:  I want to thank the

         12  Council for allowing me to make a small speech in

         13  favor of Resolution 654.  My name is Arnold Gilbert.

         14  I am the Vice-President of the Kew Garden Hills

         15  Homeowners Association.  I'm also a member of the

         16  Borough President's Aviation Advisory Council.

         17                 Kew Garden Hills is located two and

         18  one- half miles south of LaGuardia runway 13.  We

         19  are constantly subjected to aviation noise and

         20  pollution.  We implore you to deny the possibility

         21  of even more slots for takeoffs and landings at

         22  LaGuardia.

         23                 We also note, by the way, that

         24  American Airlines has now scheduled flights at 5:30

         25  a.m. And at 6:00 a.m., which to our knowledge in the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            85

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  past we were promised that there would be no flights

          3  before 7:00 or after 11:00 p.m.  We also insist that

          4  the curtailment of the 727, this equipment is

          5  definitely one of the biggest problems we have as

          6  far as noise and air pollution.  The Hush- Kit does

          7  not help, and anyone that uses that as an excused

          8  does not know what they're talking about.  The 727

          9  should be banned now.

         10                 The suffering in the areas would get

         11  some immediate relief if that were the case, and

         12  maybe we could accept some of the other proposals,

         13  but that must be curtailed now as soon as possible.

         14                 Thank you very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Thank you very

         16  much.  Mary Sarbo, Sarro, I'm sorry, Sarro.

         17                 MS. SARRO:  My name is Mary Sarro,

         18  and I'm a board member of the United Community Civic

         19  Association, and I'm appearing for our good

         20  President, Rosemary Poveromo, who, unfortunately had

         21  a prior commitment.  I will deliver her remarks in

         22  the first person as she would have.  Her message is

         23  as follows:

         24                  "Good afternoon, Chairman Dear,

         25  members of the Transportation Committee, members of
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          2  the City Council, ladies and gentlemen.  My name is

          3  Rosemary Poveromo.  I am President of the United

          4  Community Civic Association based in Astoria

          5  Heights.  Thank you for this opportunity to express

          6  our deep concerns.  I have a prepared statement that

          7  I would like to read into the record.

          8                 This afternoon, I stand before you

          9  alarmed, angry and critical.  If the present

         10  direction of Queens County remains unaltered by

         11  immediate, positive action, this county is destined

         12  to go down in history as a victim of environmental

         13  pollution, a product of the 20th Century, pollution

         14  which is made up in great part by its two airports

         15  where noise and toxic fumes are emitted

         16  simultaneously from jet aircraft and, therefore,

         17  must be considered part and parcel of the same

         18  environmental problem.

         19                 In this age of high technology and

         20  scientific achievement, residents who live in close

         21  proximity to LaGuardia Airport, in particular,

         22  exists under a shroud of deadly toxic fumes, and are

         23  relentlessly bombarded by an ear- splitting, heart

         24  pounding din, that marks the arrival and departure

         25  of over a thousand planes each and every day.
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          2                 Our residents awake intravenous he

          3  morning and retire at night, to the deafening, teeth

          4  grinding roar from LaGuardia Airport.  All too

          5  often, windows remain closed in good weather, to

          6  prevent the onslaught of noise and toxic, gaseous

          7  fumes from seeping into our homes, conditions which

          8  cannot be permitted to continue, and which

          9  responsible government must address.

         10                 We are outraged by those Federal

         11  officials, both elected and appointed, who have made

         12  and continue to make irrational, irresponsible and

         13  life threatening proposals and decisions, that will

         14  further erode our already diminished health, safety

         15  and quality of life.  They have ignored their duty

         16  and responsibility, by their blatant and outrageous

         17  discrimination against the residents of Queens

         18  County.

         19                 We know full well, that the High

         20  Density Rule is not a panacea, but it has, for the

         21  most part, capped the number of arrivals and

         22  departures at high usage airports, such as

         23  LaGuardia, and we earnestly entreat this respected

         24  body to oppose the current legislative proposals in

         25  Congress which will either weaken, by- pass or
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          2  phase- out the H.D.R.

          3                 If these ill- conceived and

          4  unconscionable efforts reach fruition, Queens County

          5  will be deluged by unlimited numbers of new flights,

          6  it's safety will be compromised and there will be a

          7  huge increase in noise and toxic jet fumes, which

          8  will cause an escalation in an already high level of

          9  asthma, emphysema, heart conditions and hearing

         10  problems, and also have a profound and devastating

         11  effect on our already diminished quality of life.

         12                 In closing, we continue to caution

         13  members of Congress and the Administration, who

         14  apparently are unable to comprehend the magnitude of

         15  our situation, that LaGuardia is a disaster waiting

         16  to happen, considering its location in the middle of

         17  a residential community and its current over

         18  utilization.  They must think long and hard, and

         19  consider the harm they would to the human element,

         20  before making any further decisions which will

         21  ultimately affect the lives of over 250,000

         22  residents of Queens County.

         23                 And we thank you Council for your

         24  proposal."

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Thank you.  The
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          2  last witness for the day, Joy Held.

          3                 MS. HELD:  Hi, good afternoon.  I'm

          4  Joy Held, President of the Helicopter Noise

          5  Coalition of New York City.  We are a city- wide

          6  coalition of individuals and community groups with

          7  over 20,000 members, which opposes unreasonable

          8  aircraft noise of all descriptions in New York City,

          9  and by that, I mean helicopter, airplane and

         10  seaplane.

         11                 Before I make my formal remarks, I

         12  would just like to make a few comments.  Regarding

         13  Arlene Feldman, when we met with Ms. Feldman in

         14  Congressman Nadler's Office two years ago, she began

         15  her remarks by saying, I am a pilot.  This meeting

         16  was convened ostensibly to give community members

         17  the inside track on how to get rule changes through

         18  the FAA regarding helicopter traffic, but we were

         19  told in no uncertain terms throughout that meeting

         20  that nothing could be done.  Ms. Feldman then went

         21  onto a subsequent meeting of the Eastern Region

         22  Helicopter Council and counseled them on how to

         23  fight community noise activists, this is how

         24  impartial she has been with regard to helicopter

         25  noise.
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          2                 Secondly, I would like to comment

          3  that we have been told that there is a log currently

          4  on the books that prohibits airplane traffic over

          5  New York City, now I don't have the specifics of

          6  that, but I'm wondering if anyone here knows

          7  anything about that or if any inquiries could be

          8  made to that regard?

          9                 Finally, as I will say in my remarks,

         10  aircraft noise is not just a concern for the

         11  residents around the airports, aircraft noise, over

         12  flight noise is a concern for all residents in New

         13  York City, and that is really what I want to speak

         14  to today.

         15                 I have been before you on several

         16  other occasions speaking about helicopter noise, but

         17  today, I wish to discuss airplane noise.  In New

         18  York City we are all under the flight paths, in

         19  fact, our sky has become one giant flight path.  If

         20  you doubt this, talk to Upper West Side residents in

         21  Manhattan whose sleep is disturbed throughout the

         22  night, every night by airplane over flights, or

         23  visited the Botanical Garden in the Bronx where I

         24  was just last week.  There conversation, let alone

         25  peaceful refuge is drowned out by the roar of low
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          2  flying jets overhead.  Or ask the residents in the

          3  other boroughs who long ago lost the quiet enjoyment

          4  of their homes due to aircraft noise.  Talk to

          5  children who have trouble studying, workers who

          6  can't concentrate on their work, hospital patients

          7  who cannot rest, people with stressed induced

          8  illnesses, all a result of aircraft noise that

          9  blankets the entire City making our sky as noisy as

         10  our streets and making escape impossible.

         11                 The health and well- being of our

         12  citizens has been mortgaged to the rapacious airline

         13  industry which has degraded our environment with

         14  non- stop noise and air pollution, pervading all of

         15  our neighborhoods, our homes and our parks.  In

         16  fact, you can't go to a park in New York City today

         17  and not hear aircraft noise.  Go to Central Park,

         18  look up at the sky on the West part of the park, you

         19  see non- stop air traffic, go to any of the parks

         20  that border our waterways and you will hear aircraft

         21  noise.

         22                 I am a resident of the Upper East

         23  Side of Manhattan where I have lived for 32 years,

         24  until the last few years we had quiet skys.  Now in

         25  addition to the helicopter noise, which has been
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          2  somewhat reduced because it has been moved to the

          3  West Side of Manhattan, which in my opinion is no

          4  solution, we have tremendous airplane noise.  Now, I

          5  don't think that this is progress, we are going

          6  backwards and that is before this law has been

          7  repealed.

          8                 So we believe that something has got

          9  to be done to reverse this process of the total

         10  degradation of our environment here.  We are asking

         11  the City Council to pass this Resolution 654, which

         12  opposes increased airplane slots at Metropolitan

         13  Airports pending further study, and we encourage you

         14  to go yet further in trying to turn back this

         15  increased air traffic over our City, and to protect

         16  residents from hazardous aircraft noise, air

         17  pollution, and accidents.  Because this is Noise

         18  Awareness Day, the focus today has been on noise,

         19  and I will stick to that focus, but I will simply

         20  point out that there is a tremendous amount of

         21  research now on the affects of the airplane air

         22  pollution in contributing to cancer, to asthma, to

         23  many other health problems, this is a very severe

         24  problem.  And you have also touched on the issue of

         25  accidents, aircraft accidents.
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          2                 We are very concerned, giving the

          3  density of New York that increased traffic is going

          4  to put our safety at risk. So, today, we feel there

          5  is no escape from the airborne indignities that we

          6  are suffering in New York City and we fear that

          7  things are going to get worse rather than better, so

          8  we look to you for assistance, and we thank you for

          9  your help.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Thank you very

         11  much.  Okay, roll call on Proposed Resolution No.

         12  654- A, calling upon the President, Congress and

         13  anybody who has any power, besides the City Council,

         14  to put a stop to their proposal to add more flights

         15  to Kennedy and to LaGuardia Airport, call the roll,

         16  please.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY:  Dear.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY:  Mccaffrey.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  Aye.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY:  Miller.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  Aye.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY:  Lopez.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Aye.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY:  Rodriguez.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ:  Aye, and I

          3  again want to say that I want to be a prime- sponsor

          4  on this bill.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY:  By a vote of 9

          6  in the affirmative, none in the negative, with no

          7  abstentions, the item is adopted, please, sign the

          8  report.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Please note that

         10  this was a Resolution that was unanimously passed,

         11  and I think all nine people who signed on want to be

         12  co- primes, and I'm sure the list will grow to more

         13  support in the Council floor, and we are, we hope,

         14  we hope that the appropriate people are listening to

         15  us and are, you know, to try to recognize that this

         16  is a very serious issue to the people both in

         17  Brooklyn and in Queens, and that there is unanimous

         18  support from the Council's Transportation Committee

         19  to do away with this Federal Law which will allow

         20  Kennedy and LaGuardia to open up for more slots and

         21  more flights.

         22                 And I, also again, want to criticize

         23  and denounce the FAA's attitude towards the people,

         24  the residents of Queens, the people who have been

         25  complaining for so long, people who want answers and
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          2  feel that they are going on deaf ears, basically,

          3  and all the issues that concern them, noise and air

          4  pollution and all the suffering that has taken place

          5  on Queens.  I want to make sure that someone listens

          6  and maybe the FAA will turn around and sit down with

          7  us.

          8                 This meeting is adjourned.

          9                 (Hearing concluded at 2:54 p.m.)
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, PAT WTULICH, a Notary Public in

         10  and for the State of New York, do hereby certify

         11  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         12  of the within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 21st day of April 1999.
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         24                          PAT WTULICH
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         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the
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